
Standards and Constitutional 
Oversight Committee
Date: Tuesday, 31 October 2017
Time: 4.00 pm

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Shirley Hudspeth, Committee and Civic Services 
Manager

Tel: 0151 691 8559
e-mail: shirleyhudspeth@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Cabinet are asked to consider whether they have any 
disclosable pecuniary and/or any other relevant interest, in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

3. STANDARDS PANEL DECISION OF 15TH JUNE 2017 
CONCERNING COUNCILLOR LOUISE REECEJONES AND 
FURTHER REVIEW (Pages 1 - 204)

The Monitoring Officer’s report is attached.

4. URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR (PART 1) 

To consider any other business that the Chair accepts as being urgent.

Public Document Pack



5. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 

The following items contain exempt information.

RECOMMENDATION: That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion.

6. URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR (PART 2) 

To consider any other business that the Chair accepts as being urgent.



STANDARDS AND CONSTITUTIONAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
31ST OCTOBER 2017

REPORT TITLE Standards Panel decision of 15th June 2017 concerning 

Cllr Louise Reecejones and Further Review.

REPORT OF Interim Assistant Director – Law and Governance

Monitoring Officer

REPORT SUMMARY

The Standards Panel of 15th June 2017 determined that Cllr Louise 
Reecejones had breached the Members’ Code of Conduct. The Panel 
decision required a number of actions to take place, including reporting the 
outcome to this public meeting. The decision was subject to a request for 
appeal which was not successful. This report sets out the steps that have, or 
have not, been taken by Cllr Reecejones and others in responding to the 
actions required.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee:

(a) Receive and consider the decision of the Standards Panel of 15th June 
2017 attached as Appendix A.

(b) Note the actions of the Political Group in response to the panel’s 
request

(c) Consider the failure of Cllr Reecejones to comply with the actions 
determined by the Standards Panel

(d) Receive and consider the opinion of the original investigating officer 
opinion and that of the further investigating officer, appointed to 
conduct the review initiated by the Standards Panel and further 
complaints, that Cllr Reecejones:

(i) has been, and continues to be, an unreliable witness; 

(ii) has attempted to mislead both the investigator conducting the 
review and the monitoring officer in attempting to enforce the 
sanctions of the Standards Panel; and

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



(iii) has continued to use her position and influence as a councillor to 
victimise the complainants by making false allegations against 
them via social media and to others

in breach of her obligations under the Members Code of Conduct

(e) recommend that, in reviewing the Council’s Whistle-Blowing Policy 
under the Constitution, regard be had to the position of whistle-blowers 
who are neither employees or directly associated with the Council or its 
contractors.

1.0  The Decision of the Standards Panel

1.1 The Standards Panel of 15th June met to consider an investigation into 
allegations that Cllr Louise Reecejones had breached the Members’ Code of 
Conduct of Wirral Council. The Decision Notice and the minute is attached as 
Appendix A.

1.2 The background to the allegations are that the complainants were whistle-
blowers concerning suspicions of financial mishandling and potential fraud 
conducted in relation to a grant paid by the Dept. for Education via the Council 
to a charitable body. The Council’s internal audit investigation concluded that 
the invoices identified by the whistle-blowers were indeed false. The audit 
report named Cllr Reecejones as being at fault; the report concluded that 
there was very compelling evidence to suggest that Cllr Reecejones had 
created and altered documents in order to deceive the Council to disguise 
financial mismanagement and that in several instances there was either 
compelling or very compelling evidence to suggest this was for a fraudulent 
purpose. 

1.3 A subsequent police investigation found no evidence that there had been any 
personal gain and, therefore, the Crown Prosecution Service determined that 
there were no charges to be brought. The Council’s internal audit findings 
stand, however, and the authority has sought to recover an identified 
proportion of the grant monies.

1.4 The complainants subsequently submitted allegations against Cllr Reecejones 
that, in response to their actions as whistle-blowers, she undertook a series of 
actions to victimise them and cause them harm. These allegations were 
referred to an external investigator, whose findings upheld the allegations as 
set out in the investigator’s report appended to the Panel minutes.

1.5 The hearing before the Standards Panel resulted in the decision set out in the 
Decision Notice, namely that the Panel:

1. accepted the Investigator’s Report (set out Appendix B);

2. agreed with all the conclusions of the Investigator as set out at 
paragraph 10.1 of the Investigator’s Report, namely:

Page 2



a. in respect of complainant 1, Tamsin Coates, the Panel found 
Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the Code of Conduct in 
making an unjustified complaint to Tamsin Coates’ employer and 
pursuing her own personal agenda in her capacity as a 
councillor. Councillor Reecejones failed to treat Tamsin Coates 
with respect and conducted herself contrary to the council's duty 
to promote and maintain high standards of conduct.

b. in respect of complainant 2, Jessica Smyth, the Panel found 
Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the Code of Conduct in 
making an unjustified complaint to the organisation for which 
Jessica Smyth volunteers and alleging that Jessica Smyth’s 
tweets and conduct amounted to harassment/stalking. Councillor 
Reecejones failed to treat Jessica Smyth with respect and 
conducted herself contrary to the council's duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct.

c. in respect of complainant 3, Overchurch Residents Association, 
the Panel found Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the 
Code of Conduct as a result of her failure to advise anyone 
(particularly the Police and the council’s Internal Audit team) that 
in her view the invoice in question was fraudulent and was an 
attempt to undermine the Association. Councillor Reecejones 
failed to treat the Association with respect and conducted herself 
contrary to the council's duty to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct.

d. in respect of complaint 4, found Councillor Reecejones to be in 
breach of the Code of Conduct because she referred to the 
standards investigation in respect of this matter in a letter to 
Wirral Leaks which was subsequently repeated in Private Eye. 
This was a breach of the duty of confidentiality arising under the 
Protocol for dealing with complaints against Members and 
contrary to the council's duty to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct.

3. agreed to refer the issues and concerns raised by the Investigator at 
paragraph 10.2 on page 72 of the Report, to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer for consideration; and to determine whether any further action is 
necessary in relation to the issues raised.

SANCTIONS

The Panel having found Councillor Reecejones in breach of the Members’
Code of Conduct determined that the following sanctions be imposed (subject
to any valid appeal being accepted):

(a) The Monitoring Officer should write a formal warning letter to Councillor 
Reecejones reminding her of the need to comply with the Members’ 
Code of Conduct;

Page 3



(b) Councillor Reecejones must apologise in writing to all the complainants 
for breaching the Members’ Code of Conduct within 14 days of 
receiving this Decision notice;

(c) The Labour Political Group Leader be asked to consider whether party 
disciplinary action should be taken against Councillor Reecejones and 
whether she should be removed (through Council) from all outside 
bodies to which she has been appointed;

(d) The Monitoring Officer shall arrange both internal and external training 
for Councillor Louise Reecejones as soon as practicably possible. 
Should Councillor Reecejones fail to attend the training arranged, the 
Monitoring Officer shall report this fact to her Political Group Leader for 
consideration and action; and

(e) The Panel’s decision shall be reported to the next public meeting of the 
Standards and Constitutional Oversight Committee for consideration 

2.0 REASONS FOR THE RECCOMENDATION

In relation to the decision, the following provides an update of next steps.

2.1 Relaying the decision (a) and appeal request

2.1.1 The decision was relayed to Cllr Reecejones by the then monitoring officer, Mr 
Tour, which resulted in a request for appeal by Cllr Reecejones on several 
grounds. The decision of Mr Tour was to deny the appeal, which was 
communicated via an email of 28th July 2017. The 14 day period within which 
Cllr Reecejones was to apologise for her actions then took effect.

2.2 Apology and training (b) & (d)  

2.2.1 Mr McCourt wrote to Cllr Reecejones to ask whether she had complied with 
the action required of her. Her response by telephone was to say that a letter 
would be hand delivered that day, which was not received. A further 
communication by email resulted in a response by Cllr Reecejones of 16th 
September 2017 which stated, amongst other things, that the reported letter 
had been sent by email. No email could be found and a further email was sent 
to Cllr Reecejones on 18th September as referred to below.

2.2.2 During an interview with the investigator conducting the review, Cllr 
Reecejones passed on a copy of a letter and then a further letter by email. An 
email was then sent on 11th October 2017, which includes the following 
relevant passage:

“Ms Shaw has forwarded to me your email in which you state that you 
cannot find the email sent to me but that you “have however enclosed the 
letter attached that was enclosed as part of the email”.

Page 4



“As stated in my email to you of 18th September, “I am not aware of 
having received a reply from you. If I have then I apologise and would be 
grateful to receive a copy of your reply and, indeed, evidence that you 
have complied with the standards panel’s decision and, at the least thus 
far, made a full apology to the complainants.”

“Your letter addressed to me, dated 15th August 2017 and provided to Ms 
Shaw by email yesterday, unfortunately does not refer to the principal 
outcome of the Panel, which is that you were in breach of the Members 
Code of Conduct and were required to make a written apology to the 
complainants for your actions. The training which was also required of 
you, and to which you do refer, is arguably somewhat pointless without 
that apology having been made.

“In respect of our correspondence and assertion that you had sent this 
letter to me, I have had my email inbox checked and can assure you I 
have never received it. You may also wish to note that the letter document 
you provided details that it was created yesterday [10th October 2017].

“Nonetheless, as stated, I am shortly to report to the Committee on the 
Panel’s decision. It is for that reason I have previously written to you, and 
do so again, given your failure to abide by the Panel’s decision. Before I 
report to the Committee, you may wish to make a comment.”

2.2.3 No direct reply has been received. 

2.2.4 On 18th October 2017 Cllr Reecejones emailed Mr McCourt, stating: 
“Dear Mr McCourt, 
Enclosed are the three apologies as per the standards panel decision of 
June 15th 2017. 
Please also send me details of training you have organised for me 
attend.” 

Attached were undated letters and addressed to each complainant by name 
only. For example:

“Cllr Louise Reecejones
C/o Wallasey town hall

Brighton street
Wallasey

Ch44 4ED

Dear Overchurch Residents Association,

I am writing to you as an outcome to the standards panel of 15th June 
2017, I apologise for breaching the members code of conduct. 

Yours Sincerely,

Page 5



Cllr Louise Reecejones”

The other letters contained the same or less, but were additionally 
accompanied by a final statement that read: 

“This letter is solely for the recipient and should not be for publication “

The document properties detail that the letters were created 18th October 
2017.

2.2.5 Mr McCourt has replied, stating:

“Dear Cllr Reecejones,

Thank you for these copies. Please provide evidence that you have sent 
these apologies to their intended recipients as required. Once that has 
happened, I can report the same to the Committee.

May I also suggest that, in any event but particularly given the gravity of 
the finding of the Panel, your wording is not likely to be considered to be 
within either the letter or spirit of the Panel’s decision requiring you to 
undertake this action.

As stated previously, I am happy to arrange for training although feel this 
should at the very least coincide or follow your apology. Given your 
schedule, please provide me with available dates over the coming three 
months.

Regards,”

2.2.6 It is, therefore, my conclusion as monitoring officer that Cllr Reecejones has 
failed to act upon the requirements of the Panel’s decision. 

2.3 Recommendation to Cllr Reecejones’ Political Group (c)  

2.3.1 Attached as Appendix C is a letter from the relevant group whip. In summary, 
the political group had decided to suspend Cllr Reecejones from the Group 
indefinitely. On appeal to the regional party structure, this action was 
commuted to a suspension of four months, to 6th January 2018, on the 
condition that Cllr Reecejones makes the formal apology required of her.

2.3.2 The group whip has asked that any further evidence or allegations be referred 
to him for further consideration under the Labour Party’s internal disciplinary 
procedures.

2.4 Review of behaviours (para 3)

Page 6



2.4.1 In accordance with the third paragraph of the decision of the Panel, the 
monitoring officer appointed Mrs Shaw, the Group Solicitor responsible for the 
Council’s Safeguarding and Litigation Legal Team, to undertake a review.

2.4.2 On 28th July the Council’s then monitoring officer received further allegations 
against Cllr Reecejones’ from the complainants concerning her behaviour at 
the Panel and, in particular, continuing social media posts making false 
allegations against them. Mr Tour’s decision was that, as these related to the 
same causal events and same matters already heard, those complaints 
concerning new social media posts should be included in the review rather 
than begin a whole panel process anew. 

2.4.3 The result of that review is attached as a report in full at Appendix D. The 
conclusions of the review are:

- “Although nobody is actually named in the post, in light of the background 
history and the small community in which the complainants and Councillor 
Reecejones move it is my view that it is likely that others would know to 
whom Councillor Reecejones was referring and this could have had the 
effect of sullying their reputations.

- “…  it is my view that it can be argued that the act complained of, although 
not signed in an official capacity, was done in a manner which failed to 
maintain a clear distinction between her personal capacity and role as a 
councillor and therefore created a risk that there could be a negative 
impact on the Council and others..

- “I therefore find Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the Council’s 
Code of Conduct in relation to her post of 11 July 2017. This failed to treat 
the complainants with respect and engaged in conduct which was 
contrary to the Council’s duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct.”

- “I am compelled to conclude that in her conduct in relation to this 
investigation Councillor Reecejones has failed to show respect to the 
Standards process and therefore to the need to maintain high standards 
of conduct as a councillor.”

3. Other aspects

3.1 It has been raised that counter-allegations made by Cllr Reecejones against 
the complainants were made both directly and publicly, whereas by contrast 
the complainants held their silence as requested by the Council and police 
whilst formal investigations were being carried out. As referred to in the 
Panel’s decision, it is stated by the complainants that those actions of Cllr 
Reecejones, given credence by her position as a councillor, led to one of the 
complainants losing their employment. It is raised by them that that chain of 

Page 7



events may not have led to the same outcome if the Council and/or the police 
had stated, at the relevant time, that they had considered the counter-
allegations made by Cllr Reecejones and declared them to be false and had 
done so in a manner that the complainants could have used to defend 
themselves.

3.2 For the Council’s part, officers in meeting the complainants have undertaken 
the following, in respect of which the views of the Committee are sought.

(1) To be considered as a complaint and tested against the standards or 
the Ombudsman’s Office as to: 
- whether or not the Council had investigated a counter-allegation by 

Cllr Reecejones at the relevant time; if so
- whether or not it could or should have written to the complainants 

to let them know that they were the subject of an investigation 
which was was considered to be unproven or without foundation; 
and if so

- whether or not that communication could or should have been in a 
form that might be used by the complainants to defend themselves 
against the same accusations being made elsewhere.

(2) That a recommendation would be made to expand the Council’s 
whistle-Blowing Policy to cover such situations that may arise again in 
respect of third parties who raise concerns about public funding or 
behaviours and who, as a result, may be the subject of victimisation  

4. IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 requires all relevant authorities to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members and co-opted 
members of the authority. 

4.2 Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 requires that each local authority must 
publish a code of conduct, based on the ‘Nolan principles’, and to have 
arrangements under which written allegations that a member or co-opted 
member of the authority has failed to comply with the authority's code of 
conduct can be investigated and under which decisions on the allegations can 
be made. 

4.3 The Section goes on to state that if a relevant authority finds that a member or 
co-opted member of the authority has failed to comply with its code of conduct 
(whether or not the finding is made following an investigation under 
arrangements described above) it may have regard to the failure in deciding—
(a) whether to take action in relation to the member or co-opted member, 

and
(b) what action to take.

Page 8



Such action might include censure by the local authority or the 
recommendation for removal of a member from a committee, but the authority 
can no longer disqualify or suspend councillors.

4.4 The Council’s ‘Protocol: Arrangements for investigating and making decisions 
in relation to allegations made under the Members Code of Conduct’ were 
provided to the Panel and may be found as set out within the minutes 
attached as Appendix A.

4.5 Where in the exercise of a discretion the rights and interests of an individual 
are affected, the rules of natural justice apply. The local authority is under a 
duty to exercise its discretion fairly and without whim or bias and must give a 
reasonable opportunity to the parties concerned to put their case, although not 
necessarily in person or by representative. In this regard, 
(a) the investigator interviewed all parties and all parties were invited to the 

Panel hearing which heard oral and written submission. In undertaking 
the review, the appointed officer interviewed both the complainants and 
the subject Member, Cllr Reecejones;

(b) Cllr Reecejones has been invited to submit written comments to form 
part of this report, by email dated 11th October and again by email dated 
17th October 2017; and

(c) both Cllr Reecejones and the complainants have been made aware of 
this meeting.

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



STANDARDS PANEL
Thursday, 15 June 2017

Present:
Councillors C Blakeley

P Gilchrist
M McLaughlin

In attendance: Prof RS 
Jones

Independent 
Person

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Phil Gilchrist be elected Chair for this meeting of the 
Panel.

2 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Moira McLaughlin informed that at some time in the past, she had 
held a conversation with one of the Complainants in the presence of the 
Assistant Director: Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer. The 
Assistant Director’s advice on this was that it did not preclude her from taking 
part in this meeting.

3 ARTICLE 9 OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION, THE MEMBERS' CODE 
OF CONDUCT AND PROTOCOL 

The Panel considered a copy of Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution along 
with copies of The Members’ Code of Conduct and the Protocol which 
detailed the arrangements for Investigating and Making Decisions in relation 
to allegations made under The Members’ Code of Conduct.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the contents of the documents provided be noted: and

(2) the Panel will be guided by the documents provided during the 
course of its decision making in respect of the complaints to be 
considered.

4 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Page 17



The Panel gave consideration to whether its proceedings should be held in 
the presence or in the absence of the press and public.  The Assistant 
Director: Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer advised Members to 
consider whether the meeting should be fully open, open in part or in closed 
session.  He informed that the Investigator’s report had been mostly 
anonymised but the 12 Appendices which were attached to it had not been 
redacted and contained personal information.  The Assistant Director 
informed that, in the light of the information contained in the report and 
appendices his advice was to hear the complaint in private session.  He also 
advised the Panel to consider this in the light of the public interest.

Members deliberated and the view was expressed that the Investigator’s 
report should be placed in the public domain at the appropriate time, possibly 
with some redactions and that frank discussions may be difficult if the press 
and public where in attendance at the meeting. 

However, Councillor Chris Blakeley disagreed with this view.  He informed 
that this meeting had generated a lot of public interest and the complaint 
should be considered in public.  He considered that the Investigator’s report 
should be made public and its twelve appendices, once redacted should also 
be placed in the public domain.

The Chair informed that he was anxious to ensure that, as much as possible, 
would be open.  However, this was a fraught and difficult matter and he 
considered that Members would be able to probe thoroughly, if the 
proceedings were held in private. On a majority vote with Councillor Chris 
Blakeley voting against, it was

RESOLVED: That

(1) under section 100 (A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by paragraph 1 
of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act in that it 
contains commercially sensitive information. The Public Interest 
test has been applied and favours exclusion.

 (2) as soon as practically possible after this meeting the Panel’s 
decision, a redacted version (if necessary) of the Investigator’s 
report and its twelve appendices (redacted as necessary) be 
placed in the public domain.  (The twelve appendices to be 
published by Friday, 30 June 2017.) 

5 CONSIDERATION OF A STANDARD COMPLAINT 

Page 18



Also in attendance at the meeting was the Subject Councillor, Councillor 
Louise Reecejones, the Complainants and the Investigator, who introduced 
her report.  The Panel considered the Investigator’s report and listened to all 
the representations made, the questions asked and the answers provided by 
the parties in attendance at the meeting.   Panel Members also asked a 
number of questions of the parties which were answered as appropriate.  

Councillor Reecejones, the Complainants and the Investigator then left the 
meeting whilst the Panel reached its decision.  

DECISION

The Panel gave careful consideration to the Investigator’s Report, all relevant 
documentary evidence and the representations made by all the parties to this 
matter.

Panel was satisfied that a satisfactory investigation and report had been 
undertaken and produced in relation to all of the complaints. The Investigator 
had appropriately considered the evidence and afforded all the parties the 
opportunity to participate and adduce all relevant information and evidence for 
consideration. 

The Panel examined in detail all the matters and issues arising from the 
complaints during the hearing and was satisfied that all the parties had been 
afforded a fair opportunity to clarify any specific points and ensure the Panel 
understood their respective positions and responses.  

The Panel will provide its full decision within the next seven days; however, 
will deliver its decision in respect of the complaints made this evening.

The Panel has noted there are a number of aggravating and mitigating factors 
arising in this matter which it has examined and considered in reaching its 
decision. Those factors will be set out in the full decision. 

The Panel considered the representations of the Independent Person in 
reaching its decision. The Independent Person was satisfied that a thorough 
investigation was undertaken; and agreed with the findings and conclusions 
reached as detailed within the Investigator’s Report.  
On balance, the Panel found all the complainants and their evidence credible; 
whereas the Panel found the evidence of Councillor Louise Reecejones to be 
inconsistent, vague and misleading. The Panel did not therefore find 
Councillor Reecejones to be credible. 

Accordingly the Panel:

Page 19



1. accepted the Investigator’s Report;

2. agreed with all the conclusions of the Investigator as set out at 
paragraph 10.1 of the Investigator’s Report, namely:

a. in respect of complainant 1, Tamsin Coates, the Panel found 
Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the Code of Conduct in 
making an unjustified complaint to Tamsin Coates’ employer and 
pursuing her own personal agenda in her capacity as a 
councillor. 

Councillor Reecejones failed to treat Tamsin Coates with respect 
and conducted herself contrary to the council's duty to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct.

b. in respect of complainant 2, Jessica Smyth, the Panel found 
Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the Code of Conduct in 
making an unjustified complaint to the organisation for which 
Jessica Smyth volunteers and alleging that Jessica Smyth’s 
tweets and conduct amounted to harassment/stalking. 

Councillor Reecejones failed to treat Jessica Smyth with respect 
and conducted herself contrary to the council's duty to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct. 

c. in respect of complainant 3, Overchurch Residents Association, 
the Panel found Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the 
Code of Conduct as a result of her failure to advise anyone 
(particularly the Police and the council’s Internal Audit team) that 
in her view the invoice in question was fraudulent and was an 
attempt to undermine the Association. 

Councillor Reecejones failed to treat the Association with 
respect and conducted herself contrary to the council's duty to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct. 

d. in respect of complaint 4, found Councillor Reecejones to be in 
breach of the Code of Conduct because she referred to the 
standards investigation in respect of this matter in a letter to 
Wirral Leaks which was subsequently repeated in Private Eye. 

This was a breach of the duty of confidentiality arising under the 
Protocol for dealing with complaints against Members and 
contrary to the council's duty to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct.

Page 20



3. agreed to refer the issues and concerns raised by the Investigator at 
paragraph 10.2 on page 72 of the Report, to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer for consideration; and to determine whether any further action is 
necessary in relation to the issues raised.

SANCTIONS

The Panel having found Councillor Reecejones in breach of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct determined that the following sanctions be imposed (subject 
to any valid appeal being accepted):

(a)The Monitoring Officer should write a formal warning letter to Councillor 
Reecejones reminding her of the need to comply with the Members’ 
Code of Conduct; 

(b)Councillor Reecejones must apologise in writing to all the complainants 
for breaching the Members’ Code of Conduct within 14 days of 
receiving this Decision notice;

(c)The Labour Political Group Leader be asked to consider whether party 
disciplinary action should be taken against Councillor Reecejones and 
whether she should be removed (through Council) from all outside 
bodies to which she has been appointed; 

(d)The Monitoring Officer shall arrange both internal and external training 
for Councillor Louise Reecejones as soon as practicably possible. 
Should Councillor Reecejones fail to attend the training arranged, the 
Monitoring Officer shall report this fact to her Political Group Leader 
for consideration and action; and

(e)The Panel’s decision shall be reported to the next public meeting of the 
Standards and Constitutional Oversight Committee for consideration.

The full decision is appended to these Minutes

Decision Notice

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Appendix C(1)

I am writing to you as Wirral labour Group Chief Whip.

This is I regards to the Standards Panel of 15th June 2017 ref, Findings & 
Conclusions. 

One of which was the recommendation that  Action be taken by Leader of Wirral 
Labour Group 

To Clarify, the Leader of Wirral Labour Group does not have the jurisdiction to take 
action regarding a Wirral Labour Group Member. This falls  solely within the Power 
of the Chief Whip as per Labour Party Rules.

This was then handed over to myself, as Wirral Labour Group Chief Whip Late June 
2017. The Start of my Investigation was delayed due to Louise Reecejones 
appealing the Standards Panel  findings of 15th June 2017. I started my Investigation 
regarding Louise Reecejones early August 2017 after Louise Reecejones Appeal 
was turned down.

I concluded my investigation regarding Louise Reecejones 28th August 2017. 

My findings where that Louise Reecejones had Brought Wirral Council & Wirral 
Labour Group, Labour Party into Disrepute and had also contravened a number of 
Labour Party rules. 

My findings were presented to the Wirral Labour Group on 6th September with the 
recommendation that Louise Reecejones has the Group Whip removed Indefinitely. 
This was Overwhelmingly Approved. 

Louise Reecejones Appealed the Recommendation as approved by Wirral Labour 
Group to Northwest Regional Labour Party. 

The Appeal Panel met on 17th October 2017 were I presented the case on behalf of 
Wirral Labour Group where it was found that Louise Reecejones, had brought Wirral 
Council & Wirral Labour Group, Labour Party into Disrepute but they accepted 
mitigating evidence from Louise Reecejones, and therefore commuting  the Indefinite 
Removal of Whip to one of Four Months, the period being 6th September 2017 to 6th 
January 2018.

Please find included the Determination Letter for inclusion also for Standards Panel 
on 31st October 2017 

Regards Ron Abbey Wirral labour group chief Whip 

 

 

Page 195



Appendix C(2)

Determination of the appeal against removal of the Whip by Wirral Labour 
Group in regard to Louise Reecejones.

 

The appeal took place on Tuesday 17th Oct at Wirral Town Hall. The appeals team 
made the following determinations.

 

 That Louise Reecejones serve a four month suspension of the Wirral Group 
Whip, this is effective from 6th September when I understand the whip was 
removed.

 The four month suspension as opposed to the indefinite removal of the whip is 
conditional on:

o The letters of apology being sent
o That training is provided for Louise (which she is expected to attend)
o That the Labour Party provides Louise with media training
o That Wirral Group officers be requested to attend the next local 

government training event

 

Best wishes 

Andy

 

Andy Smith

Acting Regional Director

North West Labour Party

[…]

Page 196

https://maps.google.com/?q=81a+Dewhurst+Road%0D+Birchwood%0D+Warrington%0D+WA3+7PG%0D+*North+West*&entry=gmail&source=g


Appendix D

WIRRAL BOROUGH COUNCIL
COMPLAINTS INVESTIGATION REVIEW

1. Introduction
I was appointed by the Interim Monitoring Officer of Wirral Borough Council to 
undertake a review of the issues and concerns raised by the Independent 
Investigator Alison Lowton in para 10.2 of her report dated March 2017 as 
requested by the Standards Panel in their Decision Notice dated 21st June 
2017 and to investigate the further complaint made against Councillor 
Reecejones on 11 July 2017as part of that review.

In order to carry out this review I have read the report of the Independent 
Investigator Aliso Lowton, the decision of the Standards Panel dated 21 June 
2017 and I have interviewed Councillor Reecejones and the complainants and 
considered the documents supplied by them.

2. Complaint dated 11 July 2017

On 11 July 2017 the Monitoring officer Mr Surjit Tour received the following 
complaint:

1) In a Facebook post from today 11th July 2017 Councillor Reecejones 
posted further allegations against us on her personal Facebook page - within 
the same post she refers to her councillor status hence linking it to an action 
as a councillor.

In the previous standards investigation report (point 6.1, page 8/9) the 
investigator states 'The posts and texts by LRJ which directly or indirectly 
criticised complainant 1 and others could have the effect of sullying their 
reputations as alleged and did accuse them of commuting fraudulent 
acts....because of the small community in which all the individuals operated, it 
was highly likely that indirect references would be understood by those 
reading the posts and texts'. 

In speaking to her report the investigator said it was a very thin line being 
walked by the Councillor in doing this as a private individual not a public 
person. She stated an argument could be made either way. 

Councillor Reecejones in this most recent post (we have attached it to the 
email) has perpetuated this. 

Page 197



Councillor Reecejones has alleged that we have commited (sic) fraudulent 
acts and collusion with the council in directing this investigation to avert 
suspicion from ourselves. Quote "others involved were not subjected to the 
same scrutiny because they sat with the council and created a document to 
ensure they were not named", "it was bid to discredit me as a councillor" and 
"the people who are passing the story on are the ones that don't want anyone 
looking at them".

She has linked this to her status as a councillor by saying "it was a bid to 
discredit me as a councillor" and "it wouldn't be a story if I wasn't a councillor".

In posting this Councillor Reecejones is alleging that we - Catherine Griffiths, 
Tamsin Coates and Yvonne McCartan commited (sic) fraudulent acts to 
pervert the course of justice of a police investigation, were involved in the 
financial irregularities and colluded with the council to discredit her. In doing 
so she is using her position and influence from this to damage our reputation, 
affect our earning potential and limit our access to support within special 
needs counties locally.

The comment and responses of people reading the Councillor's post are 
attached to show the reaction she is illiciting (sic) using these posts.

I would like to point out that Treena Johnson (who whilst posting as an 
individual - but is known to be a councillor in her ward by some people) has 
liked this status which lends kudos to what has been said by the Councillor 
when it is blatantly untrue.

2) In the Facebook post from today 11/07/17 Councillor Reecejones is lying 
and misrepresenting facts. Again as above she has linked her councillor 
status through her comments detailed above.

"Merseyside police investigated for one year, they went through every part of 
my life, they completely cleared me".

"The officer in charge of the case, told me of new evidence did come to light I 
would not be called back in because the evidence was clear I could not 
possibly have created the documents in question".

As you will recall Mr Tour, one of the council standards panel members asked 
for clarification in the presence of Councillor Reecejones to the point of 'can 
the CPS - if further evidence comes to light - could the CPS go for a 
prosecution?'. Your response was that 'yes if more evidence comes to light 
then yes'.this is not verbatim.

Page 198



Councillor Reecejones did not challenge this is anyway at the panel hearing.

The councillor is blatantly lying and using her position to influence people's 
opinions of the facts by lying. These statements are untrue as the council is 
well aware.

3) Councillor Reecejones has shown disrespect to both the process of the 
standards investigation during the previous complaint and Tamsin Coates as 
a complainant. She has also thrown allegations about the council's own audit 
into disrepute.

Councillor Reecejones breached confidentiality during the investigation (as 
agreed by the standards panel).

Councillor Reecejones presented falsified evidence during the investigation 
misrepresenting the words and actions of Tamsin Coates. The explanation of 
where these came from, during the standard's panel, provided was 
inadequate and convoluted. The evidence provided during the panel was 
different to the evidence provided to the investigator.

Councillor Reecejones lied during the panel hearing about her contact with 
Wirral leaks saying she had only spoken to a 'constituent' called Julian 
however subsequent posts by Wirral Leaks have shown this to be untrue.

Councillor Reecejones could not maintain a consistent story of events during 
the investigation and was found to be not credible.

Councillor Reecejones whilst giving a half hearted verbal apology during the 
panel hearing, which in our opinion was given to lessen potential sanctions, 
has not provided a written apology as directed by the standards panel. The 
decision notice states this should be provided within 14 days (not 21) of 
receipt of the decision notice - image attached for verification. Again showing 
disregard for the standards panel process and yet again for the conduct of 
conduct.

Councillor Reecejones has shown no regard for the standards panel and their 
opinion by perpetuating the actions/behaviours commented on by both the 
investigator and the standards panel.

It is clear she has no remorse.

We have been awaiting due process to be complete to address the 
subsequent issues when appeal limit was complete but felt it was suitable to 
add these in following Councillor Reecejones' actions today as she has put us 

Page 199



back into a position where we need to come back to the council with respect 
to the issue tjat (sic) Councilor (sic) Reecejones is yet again not treating us 
with respect or conducting herself in line with the council's duty to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct. Despite her ascertain to the Liverpool 
Echo that she will appeal she is also using social media as her appeal 
process.

4) In her role as a councillor during the standard's panel hearing on 15th June 
2017 Councillor Louise Reecejones accused Catherine Griffiths and Tamsin 
Coates of the criminal act of stalking her and alleged that she had open police 
files on us and also Maureen Fearon. She provided no proof of this to the 
investigator or the panel. We have since consulted the police and there are no 
active files open against us related to these allegations. This allegation was 
made to denigrate our reputations and affect public perception of us.

5) In her role as Councillor during the standard's panel held on the 15th June 
2017 Councillor Louise Reecejones alleged that Catherine Griffiths could 
have fraudulently created the fake invoice used to hide financial irregularities 
related to the SEND grant given to Wirral Family Forum by Wirral Borough 
Council.

Cath was never considered a suspect by police and was never interviewed 
under caution - unlike Councillor Reecejones.

Factual Background to the Complaints
On 21 June 2017 the Standards Panel issued a Decision Notice in relation to the 
complaints made against Councillor Reecejones in 2016. The Decision Notice found 
Councillor Reecejones in breach of the Members Code of Conduct and imposed the 
following sanctions:

(a) the Monitoring Officer should write a formal warning letter to Councillor 
Reecejones reminding her of the need to comply with the Members’ Code of 
Conduct; 

(b) Councillor Reecejones must apologise to all the complainants in writing for 
breaching the Members’ Code of Conduct.

(c) The Labour Political Group Leader be asked to consider whether party 
disciplinary action should be taken against Councillor Reecejones and whether 
she should be removed (through Council) from all outside bodies to which she 
has been appointed; 

(d) The Monitoring Officer is to arrange both internal and external training for 
Councillor Louise Reecejones as soon as practicably possible. Should the 

Page 200



Member fail to attend the training arranged, the Monitoring Officer shall report 
this fact to her Political Group Leader for consideration and action; and

(e) the Panel’s decision be reported to the next public meeting of the Standards 
and Constitutional Oversight Committee for consideration.

Councillor Reecejones appealed against the decision and her appeal was rejected 
by the Monitoring Officer Surjit Tour on 26 July 2017.

A further complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer Surjit Tour on 11 July and 
Councillor Reecejones was notified of this complaint by Mr Tour on 26 July 2017.

The Interim Monitoring Officer Philip McCourt wrote to Councillor Reecejones on 13 
September 17 pointing out that no response had been received to Mr Tour’s email of 
26 July and Councillor Reecejones had not complied with the sanctions imposed by 
the Standards Panel. On 16 September 2017 Councillor Reecejones responded 
alleging that she had replied previously and that the screen shot of the post she was 
alleged to have put on Facebook on 11 July 2017 was fraudulent and she had 
reported the matter to the Police. Mr McCourt also notified Councillor Reecejones 
that he had appointed me to investigate the complaint.

On 18 September 2017 I wrote to Councillor Reecejones and invited her comments 
in relation to the matters contained in Mr Tour’s email of 26 July 2017. Councillor 
Reecejones requested a meeting with me so she could show me the screen shot of 
11th July 2017 is fraudulent.

I met with Councillor Reecejones on 4 October 2017.  Councillor Reecejones 
admitted that she had posted a message on Facebook on 11 July and that the 
comments she had received “liking” the message were genuine. However, she 
alleged the wording of the message she had posted was different to the wording of 
the copy of the post supplied by the complainant on 11 July 2017. Councillor 
Reecejones produced to me a printed copy of the message she said she posted on 
11 July 17 and a copy of the pictures in her profile which she said showed that she 
had a different profile picture which had not been updated since 7 July 17. She also 
showed me these posts on her phone. Councillor Reecejones alleged that this 
showed the post was fraudulent. In response to my enquiries with the complainant 
about whether the copy of the post attached to the complaint was genuine I received 
evidence which showed that the post had been edited on 26 July 17. This is the date 
Councillor Reecejones was made aware of the complaint by Mr Tour. 

Councillor Reecejones denied that she had breached confidentiality during the 
investigation and made comments about the complainants by contacting Wirral 
Leaks. She stated these comments were written in a way that she would never write 
and whoever wrote them did it in a way that would hurt her most.

Page 201



I asked Councillor Reecejones on 4 October 2017 if she had replied to Mr Tour or Mr 
McCourt in relation to Mr Tour’s email of 26 July 2017. Councillor Reecejones stated 
she had replied and showed me on her ipad a copy of a letter dated 15 August 2017 
which was in word format. I asked if this letter had been sent by post. Councillor 
Reecejones said it had been sent by email. I asked to see the covering email. 
Councillor Reecejones was unable to find the email on her ipad. She said she would 
have to check her main computer. I asked her to do that after our meeting and send 
me the email when she found it. Councillor Reecejones has been unable to provide 
me with a copy of the email she alleges she sent.

To date Councillor Reecejones has failed to comply with the sanction imposed by the 
Standards Panel.

Conclusion
In order to uphold a complaint as a breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct it is 
necessary to show not only that the councillor complained of carried out the alleged 
activities but also that this was done in her capacity as a councillor. 

Councillor Reecejones admits that she did post a message on Facebook on 11 July 
2017 although she alleges the wording of her post was different to that provided by 
the complainants. In light of the explanations given and the evidence provided to me 
it is my view that there is insufficient evidence for me to conclude the copy of the 
post provided to Mr Tour on 11 July is fraudulent. As a general rule it is my 
understanding that posts cannot be edited by others unless they are given 
administration rights. Some evidence has also been provided that the post was 
subsequently edited on 26 July into the format which was provided by Councillor 
Reecejones on 4 October. The fact that the post appears to have been edited on 26 
July, the day that Mr Tour notified Councillor Reecejones of the complaint, appears 
more than coincidental. It is therefore my view that Councillor Reecejones did post 
the message in the terms provided by the complainants on 11 July.

In the copy of the post on Facebook on 11 July submitted by the complainant it 
alleges that “others” committed fraudulent acts and “sat with the council to create a 
document to ensure they were not named”. The post also states “it was a bid to 
discredit me as a councillor" and “It wouldn’t be a story if I wasn’t a councillor.” Even 
in the copy of the post provided by Councillor Reecejones there is an indirect 
reference to her status as a councillor where it states “I got into politics to make a 
difference…”. 

Although nobody is actually named in the post, in light of the background history and 
the small community in which the complainants and Councillor Reecejones move it is 
my view that it is likely that others would know to whom Councillor Reecejones was 
referring and this could have had the effect of sullying their reputations.

Page 202



I am aware that in her report into the original Standards Complaint the Independent 
Investigator Alison Lowton stated “I am of the view that LRJ’s tendency to be cavalier 
about whether she is acting in a public or private capacity means that she sails 
dangerously close to the wind at times”. In my view the post in which it states “it was 
a bid to discredit me as a councillor" and “It wouldn’t be a story if I wasn’t a 
councillor” was the original post and therefore it is my view that it can be argued that 
the act complained of, although not signed in an official capacity, was done in a 
manner which failed to maintain a clear distinction between her personal capacity 
and role as a councillor and therefore created a risk that there could be a negative 
impact on the Council and others..

I therefore find Councillor Reecejones to be in breach of the Council’s Code of 
Conduct in relation to her post of 11 July 2017. This failed to treat the complainants 
with respect and engaged in conduct which was contrary to the Council’s duty to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct.

3. Issues and Concerns raised by Alison Lowton

In para 10.2 of her report dated March 2017 Alison Lowton expressed concern about 
“LRJ’s ability to maintain a consistent account of her behaviour”. During my 
investigation and review I have also had concerns about Councillor Reecejones 
credibility. Councillor Reecejones informed me that she had responded to the 
Monitoring Officer in August 2017 but has been unable to produce the email she 
says she sent. During our meeting on 4 October Councillor Reecejones showed me 
on her ipad a copy of a letter to the Interim Monitoring Officer Mr McCourt dated 15 
August 2017 which was in word format. I asked if this letter had been sent by post. 
Councillor Reecejones said it had been sent by email. I asked to see the covering 
email. Councillor Reecejones was unable to find the email on her ipad. She said she 
would have to check her main computer. Councillor Reecejones sent a copy of that 
document to me by email from her ipad during the meeting. On 9 October 2017 
Councillor Reecejones sent me an email stating “I can’t find the email I sent, I’m sure 
I will come across it as my inbox is crazy on the iPad. I have however enclosed the 
letter attached that was enclosed as part of the email.” The document which is 
attached is a letter to Mr McCourt dated 15 August 2017 but the content of the letter 
is different to the letter emailed to me during our meeting on 4 October.

Councillor Reecejones has continued to make serious allegations of harassment and 
fraud against the complainants but has failed to provide evidence in support of these 
allegations other than copies of messages from the Police containing crime 
numbers. She has not provided any evidence that these matters are being actively 
investigated by the Police.

Page 203



Councillor Reecejones has failed to comply with the sanctions imposed by the 
Standards Panel. She maintained in interview that the post of 11 July was fraudulent 
and the fact that this post was fraudulent proves that the fraudulent invoices were not 
created by her but someone else and therefore she was not prepared to apologise.

Conclusion
I am compelled to conclude that in her conduct in relation to this investigation 
Councillor Reecejones has failed to show respect to the Standards process and 
therefore to the need to maintain high standards of conduct as a councillor.

Vicki Shaw
18 October 2017

Page 204


	Agenda
	3 Standards Panel Decision of 15th June 2017 Concerning Councillor Louise Reecejones and Further Review
	StandardsPanel15June2017DecsionNotice
	Minutes
	standards panel report 150617, scanned 260616, 15/06/2017 Standards Panel
	appendices 1_12 redacted, 15/06/2017 Standards Panel
	LR report to Cttee 171031 App C
	LR report to Cttee 171031 App D


